
UNITED NATIONS 1405t:h meeting 

• 
ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL Thursday, 24. February l$166, 

at 3.20 p.m. 

Agenda item 3: 

F ortieth Session 
OFFICIAL RECOROS 

CONTENTS 

Report of the International Monetary Fund 

Psge 

(oontinued) • .. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • J.'! 

A·genda item 5: 
Report of the Seoretary-Genéral on the aotivi

ties of the CentreforlndustriaJDevelopment 
pursuant to the reoommendations of the 
United Ns.tions Conferenoe on Trade. and 
Development (oontinued) •••••••• , • • • • 22 

President: Mr. Tewfik BOUATTOURA (Aigeria). 

Present:· 

Representativas of the following States: Algeria, 
Cameroon, Canada, Chile, Czechoslovakia, Dahomey, 
Ecuador, France, Gabon, Greece, India, Iran, Iraq, 
Luxembourg, Pakistan, Panama, Peru, Philippines, 
Romania, Sierra Leone, Sweden, Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of Great Britain 
and Northern Ireland, United Republio of Tanzania, 
United S tates· of America. 

· Observers for the following Member States: Cuba, 
Denmark, Hungary, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Mauritania, 
Mexico, Poland, Sudan, Trinidad and Tobago, Turkey. 

·abservers for the following non-member States: 
Federal Republio of Germany, Switzerland. 

Representativas of tbe foUowing specialized agen
cies: International LaboU:r Organisation; Food and 
Agrioulture Organization of the UnitedNntions; United 
Nations Eduoational, Soienti1ic and Cultural Organiza
tion; 'world Health Organization; International Bank 
for Reconétruction and Development; International 
Monetary Fund. 

The representativ~ of the International Atomil 
E nergy Agenoy. 

The representativa of the Contracting Parties to the 
General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade. 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

Report of the fnternational Monetary Fund (continu~d) 
(E/4141 and f\dd.l) 

1, Mr. PARTHASARATHl (India) said that the world 
payments situation had undergone many changes since 
the early post-war years, and tbe policies of tbe 
International Monetary Fund (IMF) had been pro
gressively adapted to changing needs. As the Mahaging 
Director had empbasized in bis statement (1404th 
meeting), it was only right that the Fund should devote 
its attention to solving the problem of international 
liquidity', and his delegation noted with satisfaction 
that there would soon be a sizable increase in the 

. Fund's resources, although it was a matter of opinion 

NEWYORK 

whether that increase would be sufficient to meet 
the needs of both the developing and the developed 
countries. 

_ 2. There was a tendencyincertainquarters tobelieve · 
that the problem of internationalliquidity affected only 
the highly industrializad nations, but other members · 
of the Fund were clearly also interestect, and the 
creation and distribution of any new reserves must 
be on a world-wide scale. There was sorne ooncern 
among developing countries that their interests might 
not be adequately safeguarded in any arrangement 
which might emerge from the discussions in· the 
Group of Ten. It was significant that the Trade and 
Development Board of the United Nations Conference 
on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) was studying 
the report of the Expert Group on International Mone
tary Issues, Y and the developing oountries had 
presented a memorandum Y on t.hat subject which was 
to be forwarded to IMF. He hoped that the Fund would 
give full consideration to the findings of the Expert 
Group and to the views submitted by the developing 
countries. 

17 

3. As the Managing Director of the Fund had pointed 
out, international liquidity was the business of· the 
Fund, and any scheme of reserve creation must start 
out from a recognition of the. legitimate reserve 
needs of both developed and developing countries. 
The developing countries had complex and difficult 
balance-of-payments problems and must therefore 
share fully in the benefits of any new soheme for 
the creation of reserves. Those problema were caused 
by complex economic ancíl social factcrs, and it must 
also be remembered that the developing countries had 
to overcome handicaps inherited from conditions which 
had extended over a period of centuries. Short-term 
liquidity and longer-term aid had to be viewed in 
conjunction, and tbe world economy could function 
healthily only with a steady and growing transfer of 
real resources from the richer to the poorer countries. 
The developing countries had to increase their exports 
and foreign exchange earnings • and for that purpose 
needed greater interna! and external investment, as 
well as freer acoess to world markets. The Fund 
would no doubt work towards the removal of trade 
restrictions in the developed countries and the widen
ing and strengthening of world capital markets. 

4. Although the Fund provided an important com
pensatory financing facility, only three countries 
had availed themselves of it in the three years of 
its existence, and there was a consensus amorlg 
developing countries that the scheme was rather:: 
limited in scope. He therefore welcomed the Managlng 
Director's statement that the subjeot.wasunderactive 

!1 lnternational Monetary Iasues ancl the Developtn¡CountrierJ (United 
Nations piilillcation, sales No.: 66.11.0.2). -
Y TD/B/57, annex I, and TD/B/57/Corr.l • 

E/SR.1406 1 



18 Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

study in the Fund and that proposals to improve the 
usefulness of the facility might soon be made. 

5. The usefulness of the Fund might also be increased 
by rev5.ewing certain of its lending policies. The 
Fund had moved in the direction of virtual auto
maticity of the gold trancha, which was likely to be 
of more benefit to the richer than to the poore~ 
countries. As the Expert Group on International 
Monetary Issues had pointed out in their report, there 
was a case for more liberal policies in the higher 
credit tranchas. He was confident that those and other 
problems would be taclded by 1 he Fund in the best 
interests of all countries, 

6. Mr. RANKIN (Canada) said that the importance of 
the Fund 's central role in international payments had 
been demonstrated by its activities during 1965. In 
that period, drawings by the two major ~eserve 
countries had accounted for the greater portion of 
the foreign exchange assistance provided by the Fund, 
but a number of developingcountries had also received 
direct balance-of-payments assistance. Two important 
measures had been taken to strengthen the liquidity 
position of the Fund and its ability to provide balance
of-payments support. First, the GeneralArrangements 
to Borrow had been extended for four years from 
October 19()6 and were to be reviewed in the light 
of further experience before October 1968. Secondly, 
there had been a general increase in quotas, and 
several developing countries had increased their 
quotas under the terms of the decision on compensa
tory financing, which was itself under review. 

7. There had be en a gratifying record of expansion 
in another important type of assistance provided by 
the Fund, namely, its technical assistance activities 
through the International Monetary Fund Institute, 
the Central Banking Service, and the Fiscal Affairs 
Department. Although the effect of those activities 
might be felt only gradually, they were of great 
importance and complementad the annual consulta
tions with each member of the Fund. TtuJse consul
tations, which the Canadian Government found useful 
and worthwhile, provided each member with an oppor
tunity to review its economic situation and policies 
with an independent and objective externa! autb:ortty, 
and had enabled the Fund to build up a unique store 
of knowledge and experienc~ which it was able to 
translate into practica! advice and action to further 
econ'omic and financia! stability. In that corinexion, 
he noted that chapter 3 of the Fund's annual report 
gave a full and penetrating analysis of the fiscal 
problema facing developing countries and the policies 
to be followed in solving them. The report also 
contained various observations on the debt burdens 
of developing countries and debt re-negotiations. 
The responsibility for preventing the development 
of' tintenable debt structures in developing countries 
was clearly a joint one, 

8. Canada, which was heavily dependent on exporte 
for its economic well-being, attached great import
ance to ensuring an adequate supply of international 
liquidity. It recognized the liquidity needs of develop
ing countries, particularly those which were heavily 
dependent on exports of primary products, to meet 
fluctuations in export earnings, and it was important 

that the reserve needs of those countries should be 
taken into account in any reform of the international 
mon~tary system. 

9. The Canadian delegation had noted with interest 
the suggestion of the Managing Director of the Fund 
that a multiple approach to the provision of additional 
liquidity could be equitable and acceptable. Con
structiva results could flow from the discussions 
which had taken place in a number of different 
forums. As a participant in the Group of Ten, Canada 
hoped that the industrializad countries' search for 
agreement could facilitate the wider agreement on 
which international monetary reform would be based. 
His delegation believed that IMF should continue to 
play a central role in the international monetary 
system. 

10. Mr. SULAIMAN (Pakistan) said that one subject 
of pressing concern to the Fund was the terms of 
international trade. Whereas the export earnings of the 
developing countries had not achieved the expected 
leve!, partly because of falling prices of primary 
products, prices for the manufacturad goods which 
they importad had risen. As the Managing Director 
of the Fund had pointed out, the balance-of-payments 
position of the developing countries had thus been 
adversely affected by price movements. The increasing 
disparity between the rich and poor nations could only 
be remedied by the adoption of a self-adjusting 
mecha:n~ism, whereby those who benefited from fluctua
tions in the terms of trade agreed to make payments 
to those who suffered from such fluctuations. In that 
connexion it was interesting to note that the total 
loss of developing countries through adversa terms 
of trade exceeded the total aid which they had received. 
Aid was often extended to them on commercial terms 
and tied to procurement from the lender country. 
The l~vel of aid ~o developing countries had remained 
stagnant at about the 1963 level, despite their increas
ing needs. 

11. The compensatory financing facility which IMF 
had introduced in 1963 operated only within the normal 
t~ee to five-year term, and did not therefore offer 
a . solution to problems arising from a long-term de
cline in commodity prices. He hoped that the presep.t 
close examination by the Fund of the compensatory 
financing facility would enable a scheme to be evolved 
which would more adequately take care of fluctuations 
beyond the control of developing countries. 

12. Because of the urgent need to keep the pace 
of economic development ahead of the rate of population 
growth, developing countries had sometimes be en com
pelled to finance long-term development plans by other 
long-term borrowing, and the debt situation of the 
developing countries was consequently becoming in
creasingly serious. The Fund was to be congratulated · 
on its assistance in debt re-negotiations, but his 
delegation felt that the Fund 's authority and influence 
could be increasingly directed towards securingmore 
liberal terms for loans themselves, rather than . 
easing the terms when :repayment difficulties became 
acute. The Fund could give a lead by easing its 
terms for borrowings by developing countries to 
offset fluctuations beyond their control, as distinct 
from those for borrowings by the developed countries 
to maintain their prosperous economies. 



1405th meeting- 24 February 1966 19 

13. The Fund 's excellent studies of international 
liquidity demonstrated that the existence of adequate 
reserves was in the interest of all countries, since 
a general inadequacy would result in reluctance to 
extend inter-governmental credit, restrictions on 
payments and trade, anda fallln internationalprices. 
The Fund had not only expanded its credit facilities, 
but had also contributed towards international con
sideration of the problem. He hoped that the im
portant problem of international liquidity would con
tinua to be tackled by an international organization 
such as IMF, rather than by any restricted group. · 

14. The Fund was doing excellent work in the 
sphere of technical assistance, and the International 
Monetary Fund Institute was making a valuable con
tribution towards increasing specialized and techni
cal knowledge of a complex subject. 

15. His delegation expressed its warm appreciation 
of the valuable role played by IMF under the able 
and distinguished leadership of itsManagingDirector. 

16. Mr. VARELA (Panama) said that the slow pro
gresa being made by the developing countries, to 
which the Managing Director of theFundhadreferred, 
should be á. matter of concern to the representativas 
of those countries. Because of the lack of rational 
and agreed principies of . interdependence among 
peoples, certain negative factors were obstructing 
economic development and social progress. The 
decline in commodity prices was directly affecting 
the developing countries. Another negative factor 
was the United States policy aimed at establishing 
an equilibrium in its balance of payments and re
stricting investment of capital in the developing 
countries. The indebtedness of the developing countries 
was a further serious problem which required study. 
The servicing of their externa! debt was endangering 
the liquidity of the ·developing countries, yet they 
needed externa! financing in order to accelerate their 
development. 

17. It was encouraging tha.t the countries accounting 
for two thirds of the membership of t~e Fund had 
agreed to increase their quotas. That should enable 
the Fund to take more flexible, expeditious and timely 
action to resol ve. liquidity problems and deal with 
situations requiringcompenaatory financing. T~e Man
aging Director of the Fund should continua to study 
and analyse those problema and should also intensify 
the training of persona who would be able to gi ve 
positive guidance to the developing countries in dealing 
with their financing problema. 

18. Mr. POLIT-ORTIZ.·(Ecuador) said that the modern 
world was made up of more than 118 sovereign 
nations, living in an atmosphere of growing nation
alism. They were divided into industrializad nations 
anda larger group ofmore than 100 non-industrializad 
nations. Pr\)duction of the non-industrializad countries 
oould not inoreasa at the same rate as in the indus
trializad countries and the rate of population growth 
in the formar countries was so high that it practically 
cancelled out any economic gains which thay managed 
to achieve. Tha non-industrializad countrias wera 
compelled to make superhuman efforts in order to 
emerge from thair plight. They suffered from a num
ber of handicaps that hampered davelopment: low 

level of domestic savings, a shortage of trained 
personnel, inadequate transport and communications, 
and a lack of familiarity with marketing techniques. 
Furthermore their efforts towards development en
gendered inflationary processes which affected the 
leve! of their reserves and necessitated drawings on 
IMF. 

19. The Fund had liberalizad tbe conditions under 
which its resources could be made available to 
members faced with liquidity problems. However, tbe 
conditions imposed meant, in effect, tbat tbe country 
concerned had to halt its development programmes. 
He wondered whetber the Fund sbould not mak:e a 
distinction between the liquidity problems which 
arose in major industrializad countries, such as the 
United States of America and the United Kingdom, 
owing to a high rate of business investment abroad 
or of government spending on foreign military aid 
programmes, and, on the other hand, the problema 
of developing countries, arising from decliningprices 
for their products, poor harvests or increased con
sumar demand. Thé developing countries had not 
benefited from the boom conditions which the indus ... 
trialized .countries had been enjoying for many years. 
It was traditionally argued that the prosperity of the 
industrializad countries was the guarantee for the 
progresa of countries producing primary produots. 
The facts of the present da y, however, seemed to 
weaken that classic argument on which the establish
ment of the Fund had been based twenty-one years 
ago. 

20. At present, liquidity problems were being con
siderad behind closed doors by the industrializad 
countries. He was glad that the Managing Director 
of the Fund recognized the need for the participatiori 
of the developing countries in the consideration of 
those problema. If the present system ofinternational 
trade did not allow the developing countries to build 
up savings so that they couldpursue their development 
plans and lead their peoples out of poverty, artother 
system must be found. It was clearly impossible for. 
the modern world, reduce:d in size through progresa 
in communications, to continua with a minority anjoy
ing prosperity and the majority living in abject poverty. 
The Managing Director's excellent report made it 
olear that he was aware of that problem, but it 
was one which must always be borne in mind. 

21. Mr. ROOSEVELT (United States of America) 
wished to clarify certain facts in the light of soma 
ramarks which had been made. As the Managing 
Director of the Fund had· said, the policies undertaken 
by the United . States in dealing with ita balance-of
payments problem had been planned to avoid harm 
to developing countries or to any country in a weak 
payments position. The voluntary rastraint programma 
did not apply to developing countrias. and tha interest 
equalization tax also providad for exemptlon of 
developing countries. The United Sta.tas Governmant 
was well aware of the naed not to impeda assistance 
to developing countries, and positlve measures in ald 
of investmant in daveloping countrias such as tha in
vestmant guarantee under the programme of the 
Agency for International Davalopmant were being 
c.ontinued. 



20 Economic and Social Counoil - Fortieth Session 

22. He thoroughly agreed With the Managlng Direc
tor' a observation concerning the importanoe of en
suring that the maintenance of a balance in United 
States international accounts did not adversely affect 
the world economy, and his country would co-operate 
fully in that regard. 

23. The PRESIDENT said that a hearing had been 
requested by the International Confederation of Free 
Trade Unions (ICFTU). He recalled that the Council 
had decided, at the 1403rd meeting, to suspend rule 
86 of its rules Qf procedure and ·take decisions on 
such requests on ~n ad hoc basis. He suggested that 
thf' Council should decide to grantahearingto ICFTU. 

It was so decided. 

24. Mr. BAR TON (International Confederation of Free 
Trade Unions) said that the fact that bis organization 
was offering sorne comments in connexion with the 
report of IMF reflectad an important development in 
the thinking of the free trade union movement. 
Free trade unions were becoming increasingly aware 
of the importance of the international monetary sys
tem, and were studying the problem at the national 
and at the international level. The international . 
monetary system could have a considerable influence 
on economic growth, living standards and the expansion 
of employment throughout the world, as well as on 
the development of the developing countries. 

25. The existing monetary system had helped to 
a void major economio depressions, and IC FTU, while 
recognizing the need for reform, would oppose any 
reform which would introduce in the system such 
rigidity that the danger of a major recession would 
be increased. 

26. While ICFTU could not comment on the various 
proposals which had been put forward, it believed 
that the oompetent authorities should show a greater 

. sena e of urgency. Even for the industrial countries, 
the shortage of liquidity was an immediate problem, 
and tbe policy aimed at curbing the outflow of money 
from the United States of America was already affect
ing m:oney markets in Western Europe where, in a 
number of cases, money was rapidly growing dearer. 
The real urgency of reform was apparent, however, 
when the liquidity probletn of the developingcountries 
was oonsidered. 

27. In the view of ICFTU, a reform should serve 
the following purposes: 

(!!) To provide, in the long run. sufficient inter
national liquidity to faoilitate economic growth in 
industrial and developing countries; 

(g) To help to prevent balance-of-payments difficul
ties; 

(Q) To allow, in the event of serious balance-of
payments difficulties, equilibrium to be restoredover 
a period long enough to a void mea sures which might 
disturb the domestic.economy and jeopardize the em
ployment situation in the oountry coneerned; 

(g) To distribute monetary reserves more evenly 
between advanced and detreloping countries, as well 
as among the oountries in each group. 

28. The ICFTU favoured a link between the creat•~Y 
of new assets and the creation of development futt\. 

Such a link would represent a new form of aid, 
ensuring that the aid efforts of the advanced ccuntries 
would ~ow in step with their growing wealth. 

29. A link with the creation of development funda 
would not make additional monetary reserves any 
more costly than under a gold standard. Under the 
gold standard, too, the acquisition of reserves was 
paid for by the surrender of real resources. The 
difference would be that those resources ~ instead 
of . being transfer:red to the gold produce:rs, would 
go to the countries where they were most needed. 

30. The reform should also ensure that the developing 
countries had sufficient liquidity to cope with short
term fluctuations in their balance of payments without 
putting a brake on development efforts. 

31. Finally, due representation of developing coun
tries in devising the reform and in administering 
the reformed system was a vital aspect of any 
:reform. 

32. Mr. SCHWEITZER (Managing Director of the 
International Monetary Fund) said that the Fund 
would take careful note of the comments and sug
gestions which had been made by representativas. 

33. On the question of international liquidity, it would 
be the view of the Fund that all members should 
participate in any decisions, and that any new re
serve assets should be distributed equitably among 
members. 

34. As far as the United States balance-of-payments 
problem was concerned, the existence of that problem 
had helped in the past to increase internationalliquid
ity, but its persistence beyond a certain point could 
ha ve the opposite effect, as. dollars formerly held 
as reserves might be converted into gold. The 
solution of that problem . was thus a precondition 
for efforts to crea te new international liquidity. 

35. The question of how much liquidity should be 
created was one which needed careful study; he be
lieved that the Fund had been the first body to examine 
that question from an economic standpoint. He con
siderad it necessary, in order to provide a solid 
basis for the creation of new reserves, that the 
richer countries should participate in such creation. 

36. As regards the means of creating new reserv~ 
assets, there were still many questions on whioh 
no agreement had yet been reached. llowever, once 
general Une of agreement had been found, he believed 
that the final decisions should be taken in genuinely 
inte:rnational bodies, in which the developingcountries 
hada voice. 

37. He did not think there was any tncompatibility 
in one agency making available liquidities both 
conditionally and unconditionally. At present. in 
the case of drawings within the gold trancha, the 
Fund made liquidity available unconditionally. In
ternational liquidity embraced all the resources 
available to countries: asséts held in gold at one ex
treme and those in the higher credit tranchas of the 
Fund at the other. In his view, it wa's desirable tb.at 
supervision of the growth of the aggrega.te of those 
resources should be exercised by a single authority. 



1405th meeting- 24 February 1966 21 

38. With regard to the relations between the Fund 
and UNCTAD, liquidity questions were within the 
competence of the Fund but naturally not in its ex
clusive competence. Any group of countries could 
organiza a reciproca! credit system among them
selves. It was also a fact that the countries known 
as the Group of Ten inevitably had a major role and 
a major responsibility. UNCTAD, in view of its 
wide membership, was also fully entitled to study 
the question and express its views. The Fund main
tained close links with all such groups and bodies. 
The organs of the Fund would take into account all 
points of view, and no aspect of the question and no 
legitimate interest would be ignored. 

39. It had been said that all international institutions 
were going through a period of change, and that 
applied to the Ji'und as well. The Executive Boa1•d 
of the Fund was at present re-examining the evolution 
of the Fund1s policies since its foundation in the 
light of changes in the world situation. He did not 
think that he could give any assurance that there 
would be a profound change in policy. In his view, 
the efforts being made by the Fund to help members 
in balance-of-payments difficulties were reasonable; 
the Fund also took into' account, as far as possible, 
problema of members requiring urgent assistance 
because of special circumstances beyond their con
trol. 

40. It had been suggested that the Fund could try to 
distinguish between categories of countries, especially 
with regard to the "rate of interest1' on drawings. 
The Articles of Agreement of the Fund required 
that charges should be uniform, and the Fund in
terpretad that as meaning that they should be uniform 
for all member countries in the same situation. 
He would merely say that, although rates might 
seem high in the higher credit tranchas, the average 
rate over the full period of drawing appeared very 
reasonable when comparad with normal monetary 
rates. 

41. Reference had also been made to regional 
arrangements designad to bring about integration, 
including pa.yments agreements. The Fund was ,rery 
sympathetic ~owards all efforts for regional co
operation. In the matter of payments agreements, its 
approach would be that all such agreements which 
could reasonably be seen as steps towards wider 
multilateralization were to be welcomed. The statutes 
of the Fund did not allow it to contribute to a working 
fund for such agreements, but if the participation 
of members in regional arrangements p:roduced pay
ments difficulties, they could be taken into account 
in any requests for drawings. 

42. The importance of co-operation between the 
Fund and the International Bnnk for Reconstruction 
and Developmen~ had rightly been stressed, and. the 
Fund would do its utmost to co-ordinate its activities 
with that agency in the inonetary and development 
fields. 

AGENDA I'T:EM ·s 
Report of the Secretary-General on •he activities of 

the Centre for Industrial Development pursuant to 
the recommendations of the United Nations Confer-

............ ------------~---·----------

ence on Trade and Development (continued)* (E/4131 
and Corr.l; E/L.1105) 

43. Mr. ROOSEVELT (United States of Arnerica) 
expressed his delegation's appreciation of the 
Secretary-General's report (E/4131 and Corr.1), 
which he hoped would be referred to the appropriate 
organs of UNCTAD. He introduced draft resolut~on 
E/L.ll05 submitted by his own delegation and those 
· of Gabon, Peru and Romania. The annotated list of 
the problema of procedure, administration and rela
tionship referred to in t.he operativa paragraph of the 
draft resolution would help to ensure that the Ad Hoc 
Committee on the United Nations Organization for 
Industrial Development covered all the pertinent points 
in the course of its work. 

44. M:r. FERNANDINI (PeruD mphasized that the 
request made in draft resoluti<J_ -~/L.1105, of which 
his delegation was a co-sponsc"''' #as not for a docu
ment concerning the terma of reference of the 
United Nations Organization for Industrial Develop
ment. Those terms of raference should be formulated 
by the national delegations. The basic elements were 
to be found in the documenta mentioned in para
graph 6 of General Assembly resolution 2089 (XX) 
of 20 December 1965. 

4;5. The General Assembly having taken the im
portant step of deciding to establish the United 
Nations Organization for Industrial Development, 
the next task was to determine the structure and 
operational arrangements for that body, which should 
be orientad towards practica! action and place special 
emphasis on direct assistance to help the déveloping 
countries achieve · an acc-alerated rate of industrializa
tion. The Cen~re for Industrial Development had done 
numerous research surveys but little practica! work. 
The aim of the new body would be to promote the 
accelerated industrial development of the developing 
countries, with special emphasis .on the manufacturing 
sector. The use of modern techniques for the pro
duction of consumar and capital goods for eXpandf'd 
domestic and externa! markets should be encouraged. 
The new organization could also make studies and sur
veys which should be closely related to the practica! 
requirements of operational activities. Such work 

· wotüd promote a better understanding of the p.roblems · 
and processes of industrial development. 

46. As part of its activities, the new organization 
should promote · and recommend measures at the 
national, regional and international level to accelerate 
the industrialization of the developing countries. It 
should help Governments to formulate natic•nal policies 
and programmes for the expansion of the industrial 
sector and the establishment of manufacturing indus
tries. It should encourage regional planningfor indus~ 
trial development and, in that connexion. recommend· 
special measures to give extra impetus to the economic 
growth of the more backward developing countries. 
It shoul.d see that full use was made of the resources 
of the developing countries, 'so that they could increase 
thei:t: industrial productivity and diversify their econo
mies, .aud it ahould assist in the formulation of credit 
policies designad to promote industrial expansion 
and exports of manufactures and semi-manufactures 
from the developing countries. studies should t>e made 

*Resurned from the 1403rd meeting • 



1
_, ]I!U8.111i.ll IIEiii&JMIIJSIIL.ll& l!lllil_

1
_MUQIIII1 Alilillli ________ t llillll!llbllili MillliMii!L&II!UIIII.i l!illllllllihg·'-!!!!llli!llillllillliiMLUI!Iii&-III! ___ &_&EII!MIII!!SII!i -11!11!1!112-11!1121111111111!1 

22 Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

of demand in domestic and e>dernal markets and of 
the supply of raw materials. Au effort should be made 
to see that the lees developed countries were using 
all the most modern methods of production and 
enjoying the benefits of the lates\t scientific researoh. 
Assistance should be given to training programmes 
and an effort should be made to improve instruction 
and administration in the field of technology, pro
duction and industrial programming \ and planning. 
Information on all aspects of industriaHzation should 
be collected, analysed and disseminated. Assistance 
should be given under the United Nations Development 
Programme and other voluntary pro,grammes. 

47. The Industrial Development Board should develop 
guiding p:rinciples for United Nations activities in the 
field of industrial development. It should examine and 
approve the programme of activities · of the United 
Nations Organization for Industrial Development, co-· 
ordinate United Nations industrial development ac
tivities and report on those activities to the Economic 
and Social Council and the General Assembly; it 
should also adopt the necessary measures for realiza
tion of the organization's objectives. TheBoardshould 
mobilize and allocate resources for the industrializa
tion of the developing countries and should request 
the Executive Director to prepare any necessary 
reporte, studies or other documenta. There should be 
clase and continuous ties with the regional economic 
commissions and other organs of the United Nations 
family. The Board should submit an annual report 
to the General Assembly through the Economic and 
Social Council. It should establish any necessary 
subsidiary organs, such as committees of experta. 

48. The Executive Director should submit to the 
first session of the Board a report on the measures 
taken by the Secretary-General for the establishment 
of the United Nations Organization for Industrial 
Development, including the organization of its secre
tariat. He should aleo submit a report on existing 
operational activitles relatad to industrial develop
ment, proposals for the organization's work pro
gramme and budget estimates for the execution of the 
work programme proposed. 

49. Mr. ASTROM (Sweden) said that the United 
Nations Organization for Industrial Development~ 
should provide central leadership for and ensure co
ordination of United Nations industrial development 
activitles, so that a global strategy for industrializa
tion might be developed. Since the organization had 
been created late in the history of United Nations 
activities in the economlc and social fields, lt was 
especially important to lay solid foundations for the 
new body and to see that it had the right relationship 
with other organs in the United Nations family. Suitable 
preparation should therefore be made for the work 
of the Ad Hoc Committee. His delegation welcomed 
the suggestions made in that .connexlon by the Com
missioner for Industrial Development and those con
tained in the draft resolution. The documentation to 
be prepared should be ready at least three weeks 
béfore the Ad Hoc Committee commenced its work. 
The views expressed in the Councll and any other 
information or suggestions submitted by members 
would also constitute useful working material for the 
Committee. 

50. The research activities of the United Nations 
Organization for Industrial Development should have 
a practica! orientation and be adaptad to the opera
tional· needs and speclfic functions ofthe organlzation. 
There should be co-operation and liaison with all 
other organizations engaged in similar research. 
Baste research should be undertaken on the pattern 
of industrialization to be followed by the different 
developing countries if they were to make optimum 
use of their resources. In that connexion, the 
Secretary-General's report (E/4131 and Corr.l) con
tained useful comments on the choice facing the de
veloping countries between industries geared to the 
domestic market and export industries. The United 
Nations could provide useful advice in that regard. 

51. Because of their small domestic markets, many 
developing countries needed to develop their indus
tries on the basis of regional co-operation. The 
investigation mentioned in paragraph 4 (f) of the 
Secretary-~neral' s report would be of great value. 
The activities of the United Nations Organization 
for Industrial Development relating to trade pro
motion should be co-ordinated with those of UNCTAD 
and GATT so as to a void duplication. In order to 
supplement action at the lnternational level, the 
developed countries themsel ves should provide infor
mation concerning openings in their markets for 
produC'ts from the developing countries. The :M:exican 
project mentioned in paragraph 5 of the Secretary
General' s report was of interest in that connexion. 

52. If the urgent problem of the industrialization 
of the developing countries was to be sol ved, the com
binad efforts of the developed and developing countries 
would be needed. It was to be hoped that such co
operation would be displayed in the creation and 
functioning of the new organization. 

53. Mr. IONASCU (Romania) saidthatdraftresolution 
E/L.1105 was a positiva contribution to the prepara
t'ions for the establishment of the organization. 
Industrializa tion occupied a central place i'll Romania' s 
efforts to develop its economy and his country had 
shown its interest in the question at the regional 
leve! in the Economic Commission for Europe and 
at the international leve! in the Economic and Social 
Council. He hoped that the draft resolution would be 
adoptad and that it would facilitate the very important 
work of the Ad Hoc Commlttee on the United Nations 
Organization for Industrial Development. 

54. Mr. ADIL (Pakistan) asked whether the requ.est 
: for documentation made in draft resolution E/L.ll05 
was intended to supplement or amend the provisions of 
operativa paragraph 6 of General Assembly resolu
tion 2089 (XX). That paragraph seemed to cover all 

· the information which should be made available to the 
Ad Hoc Committee .. 

55. Mr. ROOSEVELT (United States of Amerioa) 
said that the draft resolution was intended only to 
supplement the provisions of the paragraph 6 in 
question. 

56. Mr. MAKEEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said that the Soviet delegation attached great 
importance to the need to increase the export earnings 
of developing countries by implementing the recom
mendations of UNCTAD. Many oountries were se-



,, .. .. 
• ' • ' j • ...._.,_ 

. ' " 
~ ~ . ' . - . ' 

·1405th meeting- 24 February 1966 23 

riously concerned at the balance-of-payments prob
lema of developing countries, the lack of adequate re
serves, and the discriminatory measures taken by sorne 
Western countries and closed economic groups. If 
the developing countries were to carry out their 
development programmes, there must be an increase 
in their export earnings, and the Soviet Union con
tinuad to favour an expansionoftradeandco-opEJration 
between countries as a means of achieving that end. 
In 1965, Soviet imports from developing countries 
had increased by 16 per cent, while exports to them . 
had risen by 20 per cent. ·His country had signed trade 
agreements with the United Arab Republic, India and 
Pakistan. 

57. The Secretary-General's report on the activities 
of the Centre for Industrial Development (E/ 4131 and 
Corr.l) showed that the Centre was playing a specific 
and useful role in industrial development. 'rhe Soviet 
delegation noted with satisfaction that there was a con
tinuous exchange of information between the Centre 
and . the UNCTAD secretariat, and hoped that the 

Lltho in U.N. 

- .... ' . . r' 

two bodies would continua their clase working rela·
tionship, so tbat their resources could be utilized to 
the full to ensure the implementation of the recom
mendations of the Conference. With reference topara
graph 4 (Q) of the report, he recalled that resolutions 
of the General Assembly had called for a reverse 
flow of capital from the developing countries to the 
developed countries. The developing countries should 
a void capital investmerit by foreign monopolies. That 
approach was not always taken into account by the 
Secretariat in the preparation of information. 

58. His country had fully suppo1•ted General Assem
bly resolution 2089 (XX) establishing the United 
Nations Organization for Industrial Development, and 
would submit substantive comments concerning that 
body in the Ad Hoc Committee. The Soviet delegation 
supported draft resolution E/L.ll05. 

Draft resolution E/L.110!5 was adoptedunanimously. 

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m. 

10701-July 1966-1,600 




